An Cheathrit Rua is a_peninsula in Conamara located between Casla bay
and Greatman’s bay, 40 km west of Galway city. An Cheathrii Rua means
a red, or mgged, area. It’s also known as the Parish g‘ Cillin, because (f the
small chapel or church located in Barr an Doire.

The local ﬁetyo[e origina[[y lived Ey the sea because that was the source g[
foocf and income for them. As roads 5egan to be built in the area, ﬁeqpfe
started to build houses beside them, which led to the 6ui[c[ing (f the vi[[age

as it now stands.
Places gf interest and ﬁistory

The West gf Ireland is well known for its Beautyfu[ beaches, both at home
and abroad, and an Cheathrii Rua is no exception. Egpecia[[y Jaoyu[ar with
visitors is Trd an Déilin/Coral Strand, an exceptionally interesting beach.
Not on[y can you swim in its clean waters, it is also an excellent ﬁface to
snorkel or dive. During the summer there is a lifequard on duty during the
day on this Blue Flag beach. The word ‘doilin’ means cove or inlet. The
beach is not com}aosec{ of sand, but g[ comﬁ[ikc:formations g‘ lime which has
leeched out of seaweed, become hardened and then broken off, according to
experts.

Teampall Bharr an Doire, also known as Teampall Inis Mhic Adhaimh is
the oldest ruin in an Cheathrii Rua. The chapel is thought to have been
built in oyajgroximate[y the 15™ century, because g‘ the Gotﬁic~sty[e door and
curvilinear window. It is said that St. Smucdn of Arainn built the chapel in
on[y one nigﬁt. The walls and gaﬁ[es are made g( granite blocks, with
windows and doors in [imestone. The chapel measures 15.6 metres from end
to end and is 5 metres wide.

Cnoc an Phobail (Hill of the People) — people used come here from far and
wide to celebrate special events, such as Patron’s Day and St. John’s Eve.
Loch na Naomh (lake of the Saints)— according to oral history, a group of
ﬁo[y men on their way to Arainn went up to Cnoc an Phobail, [ooking for
water after stopping at Sruthdn. The only source they found was some
water which had collected in the ﬁog]fprint gf a cow; but pg‘ter tﬁey drank



from it, the ﬁuddfe grew to the size g‘ a lake. The story goes that one g[ the
men [gft a ﬁo[y book behind, but there was such a [ong line g( saints that
they passed the request all the way back down the line until the story
reached the last man, who ﬁicked up the book and 6rougﬁt it with him as he

was [eaving the lake.

An Séipéal (the Church) — The first church in more recent times was located
in an Caordn Mor, with the priest’s residence next to it. This is wﬁy the
road leading up Cnoc an Phobail is called Béithrin an tSagairt (the Priest’s
road). By 1850, a new church appears on ordnance survey maps at a
location currently occupied by the local primary school, Scoil Ndisiinta
Mhic Dara, with the priest’s residence to the rear. Father Uaitéar Mac
Conbhui built the new residence in 1889 and the current church, Se’ijae’a[
Mbhic Dara, was built in 1893.

Tobar na Croise (well of the Cross) — located opposite Loch an Mhuilinn on
the way into an Cheathrit Rua on the left. The cross was erected in 1934
qfter a mission against poitin (strong home brew[moonshine) by Father
Stig‘a’n 0] Con_qﬁai[e (Mission Connolly) from Arainn. The cross was put up
to remind people of the neqative effects of poitin.

Leic an Phdtriiin (Stone of the Patron) — on the site now occupied by Tigh
an Tdilliira. This was where the festival of St. Mac Dara used to be
celebrated on 15th of March. The same patron saint was celebrated in
cf_iﬁerent Jﬂ[aces — at the Cﬁq]ﬂe[ in Barr an Doire, at the Quay in Sruthdin,
on Cnoc an Phobail, and fina[[y at Leic an Phdtritin. This practice stqp}oecf
in the 50’s.

Céibh an Déilin (Déilin Quay)- is also known as Céibh na Mine (Meal
Quay) because cornmeal used to be landed heve. Trd na bPdisti (the
Children’s Beach) — the burial ground for unbaptised childven was nearby.
Cuan an Fhir MhGir (Greatman’s Bay) or Cuan an Inbhir Mhdir (Great
Estuary Bay) — is the 5ay between An Cheathrii Rua, west g( an Ddilin,
and Ceantar na nOiledn. Cloch Chormaic (Cormac’s rock) — a large rock
thrown back and fortﬁ between two giants until it broke in two, acconfing
to legend. One half is at an Déilin and the other is in Tir an Fhia on the
opposite side of the bay.



Pdirc an Chathdnaigh — named in honour of Sedn O Cathdin or
John Keane who was elected a County Councillor for the political
_party Fianna Fdil in 1928, 1934, 1942 and 1945. He was elected a
Teachta Dila (representative to the Irish Ddil [parliament]) in 1940,
the last T.D. to be elected from this area (although we currently have

a Senator, Trevor O Cfocﬁarmigﬁ.)

An Fhaithche[Diméin (The Green/Demesne) where the smuggler Mdirtin
Mdr O Miille lived with Richiard Martin at the end of the 18" century. The
Big House’s foundations are still visible at Ard an Ti Mhéir. Smugqgled
goods were brought ashore at an Délainn down at the inlet. The Mdille left
the area for Arainn in approximately 1830.

Leanna Fion (Wine) — Down by Trd an Déilin, the location of another Big
House where the landlord Hartnetty lived. 1t was said to have a cellar full
of wine and rum, hence the name. This is reputed to be the first inhabited
area in an Cheathrit Rua, with many ruins remaining today.

Important historical events

One of the most famous events in the history of the area is Cath (battle) na
Ceathriin Rua, which took Jg[ace in January gf 1880. The unrest ﬁcyajaenecf
during the national movement against landlords known as the Land Wars.
Officers of the law were not allowed to carry out an eviction from houses
belonging to the landlord Kirwan. Locals fought the police with the help of
ﬁeoyfe from surrouncfing areas, incfut{ing Cois Fﬁarmige, Ceantar na
nQOiledn, Ros Muc, Oiledn Arann and Diche Sheoigeach.

Ruaidhri Mac Easmuinn visited the area in 1913. He had great respect for
the Irish [anguage but was oyojoa[fed at the _poverty g( the local Jae(ya[e,
esyecia[[y the schoolchildren. He }aromised to ﬂe[p, and sentffour and f[anne[
[fabric] to Caladh Thaidhg. The following is an excerpt from Peadar Neili 0]
Domhnaill’s account g( his visit to the school, from the book ‘Seod-Aisti as
Conamara’:

Fear bred ard tanai a b’ea é fuoina chéta mor bréidin bdn

aqgus fe’aség dhubh. Bhi mise sa triii rang ag an mubinteoir



lich Pddraic O Tiobraide,* qo ndéana Dia trocaire air.
D'fhiafraigh an cuairteoir dhiom cén t-ainm a bhi orm aqus
d’inis mé dhé i mBéarla, aqus ni raibh foca[ eile Béarla aq aon

gﬁasﬁr san am sin ach a n-ainm.

[He was a tall thin man under his white tweed coat and black
beard. T was in third class with the Kind teacher Pidraic O
Tiobraide*, God rest him. The visitor asked my name, which I
answered in Eng[isﬁ, as no child could say anytﬁing in Eng[isﬁ

other than his name.|

*Mdistir O Tiobraide was an ancestor gf the broadcaster Ryan
Tuﬁricfy
Artists

The artist Charles Lamb lived in an Bithar Bui from 1933 until his
death in 1964. The people and the landscapes of the area formed the
inspiration_for much of his art. The painter, sculptor and etcher
Pddraic Reaney is from Cuilledn. Eddie Delaney lived in an Caordn
Mor for about 30 years until he passed away in 2009. He was a
scuﬁ:tor known for sevem[famous pieces, inc[uc{ing Woﬁ[e Tone and
Thomas Davis, which are on disy[ay in Jau[i[ic areas in Dublin and
elsewhere. Dan O Flaithearta, Danny Wallace, Mary Conroy and
Aoife Casby are some of the contemporary artists working in the
areq.

The writer Peadar Neili O Domhnaill was born in an Caordn Beag
in 1903, and Jouﬁfisﬁed in Scéala Eireann, Ar Agﬁairfﬁ, the Standard
and in Leabhar na gCeaipisineach. His book Seod-Aisti as
Conamara was publishedin 1943. Muiris O Sitilleabhdin, author of
Fiche Blian aq Fds, was born on an Blascaod Mér but lived in an
Cheathrii Rua and is buried in the cemetary at Barr an Doire. His



son Eoin O Sailleabhdin, ws well known as an Abbey actor; in
Conamara every ear listened out for him on Satur&fay evenings on
radio  programmes such as Colm sa mBaile, Colm ar Strae and others.

Tomds Jimmy Mac Eoin, singer and composer, lives in an Bothar
Bui. An Cailin Alainn and Bledn na Bé are two of his best-known
songs. He performed the Yeats poem The Stolen Child on the
Waterboys album The Fisherman’s Blues. Tomds and his sister,
Mdire Ui Fhlatharta, brought out a collection g[ poems, Loscadh
Sléibhe and Mdire has also written a novel Nd gabh thar ti Stiofdin,
which was published in 2010.

As with everywﬁere in Conamara, there have a[ways been sean-nos
singers in an Cheathrit Rua, including Mdire Nic Dhonncha
Cholman Johnny, Pddraiq O Cathdin, Peadar Tommy Mac
Donncha, and Michedl Seoige. Bands and singers play both
traditional and country or rock music: Cillin are one of the berter
known groups.

The filmmaker Bob Quinn has been living in the area for more than
40 years. His films include Poitin, Caoineadh Airt Ui Laoghaire, and
Atlantean. He is also well-known as a photographer of landscapes
and people in this area.

The writer Paul Mercier has lived in this area since 1998. The plays
written and Joroc{ucez{ by Mercier include Home, Studs, and
Drowning. He also produced the television programme for teenagers,
Aifric.

The Pyes also lived in an Caordn Beag; it is said that tﬁey came from
Ennis in Co. Clare. They were successful but fell on hard times and
the last g( them, Pat, died in the Jaoorﬁouse in 1919. Omne g‘ them was
a_poet and a visionary, most gf whose Jarec{ictions are vpm:porteof to
have come true. There was a professor Pye in Galway university who

was Jaerﬁcgos a relation gf this same fami[y.

I m{ustry



Aside from agricu[ture and fisﬁeries, there was little in the way g‘ im{ustry
in the area until the 1970s. Of course, as was the case in every other area, an
Cheathrii Rua had its carpenters, coopers, thatchers, hunters, tailors,
blacksmiths, masons and carters (hauliers with horse and cart).

Ida Yates spent time in an Cheathrii Rua teaching lacework to young
women, which was highly prized at the time. At the time of the Congested
Districts Board, at the end g‘ the 19" century, a small lace factory was set
up (on the site of the priest’s residence today) and employed four or five

women.

At qpﬁroximate[y the same time, a knitting factory was set up next to Loch
an Mhuilinn which emﬁfoyecf many young women, some (_)f whom used
their earnings to book _passage to America

An industrial estate was built on Botharna Tismedine in the 70’s, where up
to six factories were worﬁin_q until 8-10 years ago.

Learning Irish -Acadamh na hOllscolaiochta Gaeilge and Coldisti Gaeilge
(Irish-lanquage courses) — there are many opportunities to learn and
improve your Irish in an Cheathrii Rua: see www.acadambh.ic for adult and
third-level education and view the list of summer colleges available for
secondary students in the area on this website.

Tourism — because of our clean, beautiful beaches and environment we host
many tourists every year. The Irish language and courses for people of
different ages also bring students and visitors throughout the year.

Céad mile fdiltel


http://www.acadamh.ie/
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